PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Oversight and Governance
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council

Ballard House

Plymouth PLI 3B]

Please ask for Democratic Support

T 01752 305155

E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

Published 21/02/23

TAXI LICENSING COMMITTEE

Thursday 2 March 2023
10.00 am
Council House

Members:
Councillor Churchill, Chair

Councillor Haydon, Vice Chair
Councillors Partridge, Rennie, Singh, Tofan and Tuffin.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

For further information on webcasting, attending Council meetings and how to engage in the
democratic process please follow this link - Get Involved

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive


https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/get-involved
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/

Taxi Licensing Committee

AGENDA
l. Apologies

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members.
2, Declarations of Interest

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this
agenda.

3. Chair's Urgent Business

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought
forward for urgent consideration.

4. Appeal Cases

The Committee will be provided with the results of the judgement on appeal cases that
went to Court.

5. Number of Certificates of Good Conduct Exemptions

Granted
6. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licence Fees Report: (Pages | - 12)
7. Exempt Information

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act,
1972 to exclude the press and the public from the meeting for the following items of
business, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information, as
defined in paragraph | of Part | of Schedule |2A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom
of Information Act 2000.

Part Il (Private Meeting)

Agenda

Members of the Public to Note:

That under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private. Member of
the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

8. Review Status of a Private Hire Vehicle Driver Licence: (Pages 13 - 24)



9.

Review Status of a Restricted Private Hire Vehicle Driver
Licence:

(Pages 25 - 34)



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL Page 1 Agenda Item 6

Taxi Licensing Committee

do LAl
Date of meeting: 02 March 2023
Title of Report: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licence Fees
Lead Member: Councillor Pat Patel (Cabinet Member for Customer Services, Culture,
Leisure & Sport)
Lead Strategic Director: Ruth Harrell (Director of Public Health)
Author: Graham Hooper
Contact Email: 01752 304533
Your Reference: GH/Fees 2023/24
Key Decision: No
Confidentiality: Part | - Official

Purpose of Report

Plymouth City Council regulates the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire industry through the licensing
framework set out in the Plymouth City Council Act 1975. Fees for licences should be set at a figure
which will recover the full cost of the licensing administration including enforcement, in so far as is
consistent with the particular provisions which allow licence fees to be charged. The budgets for
licensing are operated as two trading accounts, one for Private Hire and the other for Hackney
Carriage. A review of the current fees has been undertaken to balance the two trading accounts and
ensure there is no cross-subsidy.

It is recommended that there is no change to the fees and that they remain the same as set for the
financial year 2022 to 2023 and as shown in Appendix |.

Recommendations and Reasons

That Members consider the report and resolve to:
Agree that the fees will remain the same and not have any changes for the financial year 2023/24.

Alternative options considered and rejected

All trade accounts, for both Private Hire and Hackney Carriage (Taxis), are due to remain in credit by
the end of the financial year 2023/24, however it would not be wise to reduce any of the fees at this
stage given the economic uncertainty and the after effects of the covid pandemic.

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan

This report links to the delivery of the City and Council priorities. In particular:

Unlocking the city’s potential: By ensuring Plymouth: is a clean and tidy city and a green and sustainable
city that cares for its environment; has a vibrant economy offering quality jobs and skills; is an exciting,
cultural and creative city and has a varied, efficient and sustainable transport network.



OFFICIAL
Page 2 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Caring for people and communities: By ensuring Plymouth is a friendly, welcoming city, making sure
people feel safe in the city, protecting children, young people and adults.

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:

The Hackney Carriage and Private Hire accounts have been reviewed.

This is the fifth year of a five year process to ensure the Taxi Licensing accounts are out of deficit by
the end of the financial year 2023/24 (subject to increases in subsequent years) and we are pleased that
this is on track to being achieved. The Private Hire Driver, Vehicle and Operator Accounts all remain
in a surplus position (subject to increases in subsequent years). The Hackney Carriage accounts are
also in balance (subject to increases in subsequent years).

Financial Risks

Both Hackney Carriage and Private Hire accounts are separate trade accounts and must be paid from
revenue from the licence fees and not from the Council’s revenue funding.

The Council cannot make a profit from licence fees and any surplus must be carried forward to the
following financial year. There can also be recovery of any deficit.

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:

Not Applicable.

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.

Not Applicable

Appendices

*Add rows as required to box below

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)
If somel/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A
of the Local Government Act | 972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Briefing report title

B Equalities Impact Assessment (if applicable)

Background papers:
*Add rows as required to box below
Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works,

relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
work is based.



OFFICIAL
Page 3 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it
is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A of the Local
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7
Sign off:
Fin Leg Mon | Click | HR Click | Asset | Click | Strat | Click here
DJN. Iw Off here here |s here | Proc | to enter
22.23 20.02 to to to text.
.382 .23 enter enter enter
text. text. text.

Originating Senior Leadership Team member: Ruth Harrell

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report? Yes

Date agreed:

Cabinet Member approval: Councillor Pat Patel (Cabinet Member for Customer Services, Culture,
Leisure & Sport) by email.

Date approved:




OFFICIAL
Page 4 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Briefing Report

1.0 Background Information

[.I Plymouth City Council regulates the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire industry through the
licensing framework set out in the Plymouth City Council Act 1975. Fees for licences should be
set at a figure that will recover the cost of the licensing administration including enforcement, in
so far as is consistent with the particular provisions which allow licence fees to be charged The
budgets for taxi licensing are operated as two trading accounts, one for Private Hire and the
other for Hackney Carriage. Within each account, the elements are separated into driver licence
and vehicle licence, with an added operator element for the private hire account.

[.2 A review of the fee structure and levels was last undertaken on 2| January 2022 and the fees
have not been increased since April 2020. This will be the fifth year of a five year process to
ensure the Hackney Carriage Vehicle accounts are out of deficit and remain out of deficit by the
end of the financial year 2023/24 (subject to further increases in subsequent years).

[.3 At the time this report has been written both the Hackney Carriage accounts are in a surplus
position. All accounts for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire are on track to be in in this
position by the end of 2023/24.

.4 Appendix | contains the current fees, which are proposed to remain from 01/04/2023 to
31/03/2024.

2.0 Legal Framework

2.1

22

23

Drivers Licences

The Council may make a charge for the grant of the licences for drivers of Hackney Carriages and
Private Hire vehicles by virtue of Section | [(2) of the Plymouth City Council Act 1975. The fees must
be considered reasonable with a view to recovering the costs of issue and administration (including
compliance) of the licence.

Vehicle Licences

The Council may make a charge for the issue of a vehicle licence for a Hackney Carriage or a Private
Hire vehicle by virtue of sections 5A and 28 of the Plymouth City Council Act 1975.
These fees can include the:

e Reasonable costs of inspection of vehicles

e Reasonable cost of providing ranks for Hackney Carriage vehicles, and;

e Any reasonable or other costs connected with the administration and compliance of Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire vehicle licensing.

Operators Licences
The Council may make a charge for the issue of Private Hire Operators licences by virtue of section 28

of the Plymouth City Council Act 1975. The Operators fee should relate to the costs for grant,
renewal and of administering the licensing scheme and should be reasonable.



OFFICIAL
Page 5 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

24 Itis considered that all reasonably incurred legal expenses and professional charges incurred in taking
or defending proceedings which are directly related to the control, supervision, administration and / or
enforcement of all parts of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trade should be charged to the
relevant part of the taxi reserve accounts.

3.0 Process to vary fees

3. To be able to vary the fee structure there is a statutory process required under s.28 Plymouth City
Council Act 1975 which is as follows:

I. An advertisement will need to be placed in the local press giving a minimum of 14 days from
publication for objections to be received. If no objections are received within that time limit
then the date the fee change comes into effect is the date specified in the notice as being the
end of the period for objections (which would also be the case if any objections are received
but withdrawn before the end of that period)

2. Any objections received and not withdrawn will be fed back to this Committee for
consideration, once the consultation period has elapsed.

3. At that time Members will be required to consider the objections and decide whether to
amend the fees in line with objections or to continue with the changes as proposed.

4. The earliest any change could be effective, if there were no objections, would be 14 days after
the date the advertisement appeared in the press.

5. The latest any change could become effective would be 2 months after the completion of the
period for objections

4.0 Allocation of expenses and income

4.1 In setting its fees the authority should seek to recover the total cost of the administration of that
licence or process. The fees for the five licence types, Hackney Carriage driver and vehicle, Private
Hire driver, vehicle and operator, will be set at a level to recover the costs of all control, supervision,
administration and/or compliance associated with the licence type.

4.2 The cost of the licensing system can be divided into the processing of individual applications and the
general administration and compliance monitoring of the system.

4.3 Where specific expenditure can be associated with a particular trade the amount is allocated to that
trade budget, e.g. vehicles plate costs etc. Where generic expenditure is incurred, including general
costs, this was allocated for the financial year 2022 to 2023 on a 32% (Hackney Carriage) and 68%
(Private Hire) basis. An example would be printer consumables and stationery.

4.4 lItis proposed that for this next fee period the split for general costs should remain the same as the
financial year 2022 to 2023 at Hackney Carriage 32 % and Private Hire 68 % based on the average of all

licence administrative functions:

Split of licences in 2021 (as at 6.12.21)

Licence Type Number Licence Type Number | Total % Split HC % PH
Hackney.Carrlage 306 Private Hire Vehicles 627 933 33 67
Vehicles
Hackney Carriage 314 | Private Hire Drivers | 673 987 32 68
Drivers
Private Hire Operators 39 1026 N/A 6l
32 68




OFFICIAL

Page 6 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Licence Administration

In financial year 2021/22, a total of 2265 applications were received for new licences or for the
renewal, transfer, change of addresses, amendments, cancellation or surrender of existing licences.
Of these 35% (794) were related to the hackney carriage trade and 65% (1471) to the private hire

trade.

4.5 The costs associated with the general maintenance of the licensing system and enforcement relates
mainly to taxi licensing officer staff salaries.

In financial year 2021/22, the two Taxi Enforcement Officers undertook 274 vehicle inspections.
Of these vehicle inspections, 106 (39%) were Hackney Carriage vehicles (HCV’s) and 168 (61%)
were Private Hire vehicles (PHV’s).

20 stop notices were issued for HCV’s and 10 stop notices for PHV’s. Vehicle Defects Notices
were issued for 20 HCV’s and 16 PHV's.

Officers investigated a total of 243 Taxi Licensing complaints. 80 complaints were regarding
HC drivers and 84 complaints were regarding PH drivers. There were 314 HC drivers and 673
PH drivers last year so we are getting complaints regarding 25% of the HC drivers compared to
12% of the PH drivers.

Officers also investigated 28 complaints regarding HC vehicles, 26 complaints regarding PH
vehicles; 22 complaints regarding PH operators and 3 general taxi licensing complaints.

These complaints resulted in four HC drivers and six PH drivers going to committee based on
the complaints received. 10 new Private Hire Driver applications were required to go to
committee. Please refer to Table | below for the decisions that resulted at committee.

Table I: Committee Decisions

5.0

5.1

NFA Warning Suspension | Revocation Granted Refused
Application

HC Driver 0 0 4 0 I N/A
licence review
PH Driver I 0 2 3 N/A N/A
Licence review
PH Driver New N/A N/A N/A N/A 10 |
Apps

One Hackney Carriage Driver appealed to the Magistrates Court as a result of a suspension and
the appeal was dismissed by the Magistrates Court.

One Private Hire Driver had their appeal against a Committee refusal of their drivers private hire
drivers licence dismissed at Magistrates Court.

Overall in the financial year 2021/22, the enforcement officers spent 40% of their time on the HC
trade and 60% on the PH trade.

Fee Changes

Hackney Carriage Account

The predicted income and expenditure for the year has been reviewed. The reserve accounts are




OFFICIAL
Page 7 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

52

6.0

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

currently in a small surplus and it is proposed that there is no increase in fee to the Hackney Carriage
Drivers Licence or Vehicle Licence fees this year.

It is not recommended to reduce the fees for 2023 to 2024 due to the remaining effects of the covid
pandemic and the current economic uncertainty and resultant rise in costs to deliver the Taxi Licensing
Service for example 13% rise in associated consumables (vehicle plates/badges etc) and to fund service
improvements including IT and digital development.

Please refer to the summarised accounts in Appendix 2, table |.

Private Hire Account

The predicted income and expenditure for the year have been reviewed. The reserve accounts are
currently in surplus and it is proposed that there is no increase in fee to the Private Hire Drivers
Licence, Vehicle Licence or Operators fees this year.

As with the Hackney Carriage account, it is not recommended to reduce the fees for 2023 to 2024
due to the remaining effects of the covid pandemic and the current economic uncertainty and resultant
rise in costs to deliver the Taxi Licensing Service for example 13% rise in associated consumables

(vehicle plates/badges etc) and to fund service improvements including IT and digital development.

Please refer to the summarised accounts in Appendix 2, table I.

Consideration to the use of Direct Debits

6.1 Last year we offered drivers and vehicle proprietors an option to pay by direct debit in advance
for future one year licences. To date, no-one has taken up this offer.

Cost savings this year

The following savings against expenditure in the Taxi accounts have been made:
e We have not replaced the third Taxi Enforcement Officer, who left at end of November 2019.
¢  We have not replaced the NVQ Apprentice Administration officer since the end of February

2021.
e The legal costs have also been significantly reduced during this period.

Future Budget Risks and Management

The Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing system is frequently subject to challenges through the
court systems, ombudsman and external audit functions. Much of the law is subject to individual
interpretation by judges and so officers will continue to monitor challenges to accounting systems in
other councils to ensure that we have a defendable accounting system.

Conclusion
Having considered legal and financial advice on the fees structure and reviewed projected fee incomes
and expenditure officers propose that the fees remain the same as set for the financial year 2022 to

2023. The fees are shown in Appendix .

The impact of fee changes will be reviewed annually and any necessary alterations will be approved as
set out in the Council’s scheme of delegation.



OFFICIAL
Page 8 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

APPENDIX |

Proposed that the fees for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences for 2023/24 will
remain the same.

Table I: Hackney Carriage current and proposed fees (no change).

Hackney Carriage

Type Proposed Fees (as current)
Vehicle licence (| year) £369
| Year Drivers licence £190
3 Year Drivers Licence £500
New Drivers Application Fee £137
Replacement Plate £13.50
Duplicate licence £10
Vehicle Transfer £35
Change of vehicle registration number £35
Drivers Test £85
KOP test £72
Spoken English Test £33
Replacement ID Card fee £10
Refund Fee £15




OFFICIAL
Page 9 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Table 2: Private Hire current and proposed fees (no change).

Private Hire
Type Proposed Fees (as
current)

Vehicle licence (| year) £184
| Year Drivers licence £134
3 Year Drivers Licence £336
Drivers Application Fee £137
Replacement Plate £13.50
Replacement Door Sticker £5.25
Duplicate licence £10
Vehicle Transfer £35
Change of vehicle registration number £35
Drivers Test £85
KOP test £72
Spoken English Test £33
Replacement ID Card fee £10
Refund Fee £15
Operators annual application fee £135
Operator fee per vehicle (annual) £3.80
Operators 5 year application fee £578
Operator fee per vehicle (5 year) £19




OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 2

Summarised accounts for 2021/22

Page 10

Hackney Accounts 2021/22 Outturn - Summary

Please Note: Income and Surpluses are shown in (brackets)

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Sum of Sum of
Expfnditure or Groupings Sum of 202 I.l22 2021/22 Total
ncome Hackney Driver Haclfney 2021/22
Vehicle
Expenditure Staffing £39,718 £68,957 £108,675
Other Staff costs £90 £1,233 £1,322
Vehicle Costs £0 £155 £155
Rank Review £0 £1,365 £1,365
Supplies and services £2,278 £5,355 £7,632
Legal Internal £6,639 £2,752 £9,391
Driver Training £235 £0 £235
Expenditure Total £48,959 £79,816  £128,775
Income Other Income (£593) (£1,285) (£1,878)
Vehicle Licence £0 (£112,884) (£112,884)
Driver Licence (£62,758) £0 (£62,758)
Licence Amendment £0 (£70) (£70)
Test Fee (£798) £0 (£798)
Income Total (£64,149) (£114,240) (£178,389)
Grand Total (£15,190) (£34,424) (£49,613)



OFFICIAL

Page 11

Private Hire 2021/22 Outturn - Summary

Please note: Income and Surpluses are shown in (brackets)

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Sum of Sum of Sum of Sum of
Expenditure Groupings 20.2 1/22 20.2 1/22 20? 1/22 Total
or Income Private Private Private 202122
Driver Vehicle Operator

Expenditure  Staffing £67,852 £112,816 £6,053 £186,721
Other Staff costs £393 £819 £20 £1,232
Vehicle Costs £0 £233 £0 £233
Supplies and services £4,010 £11,918 £5 £15,933
Driver Training £1,015 £0 £0 £1,015
Legal External £0 £0 £2,500 £2,500
Legal Internal £7,477 £1,031 £1,440 £9,948

Expenditure Total £80,746 £126,817 £10,017 £217,581

Income Other Income (£728) (£1,578) (£86) (£2,392)
Vehicle Licence £0  (£118,524) £0  (£118,524)
Driver Licence (£92,524) £0 £0 (£92,524)
Operator Fee £0 £0 (£13,878) (£13,878)
Licence Amendment (£20) (£3,405) £0 (£3,425)
Test Fee (£4,710) £0 £0 (£4,710)

Income Total (£97,982) (£123,506) (£13,964) (£235,452)

Grand Total (£17,236) £3,311 (£3,946) (£17,871)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda Item 8

The following relates to exempt or confidential matters (Para(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Govt Act 1972). An
breach of confidentiality could prejudice the Council/person/body concerned & might amount to a breach of the councillors
/lemployees codes of conduct.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25 Agenda Item 9

The following relates to exempt or confidential matters (Para(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Govt Act 1972). An
breach of confidentiality could prejudice the Council/person/body concerned & might amount to a breach of the councillors
/lemployees codes of conduct.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licence Fees Report
	8 Review Status of a Private Hire Vehicle Driver Licence
	9 Review Status of a Restricted Private Hire Vehicle Driver Licence

